
 
 

FARNDON DURING THE SECOND WORLD WAR 
 

Remembering the Men of Farndon 
 
 
 

 
Pilot Officer 89092 COLIN DOUGLAS LOUGHLIN 

14 Squadron, Royal Air Force Volunteer Reserve  
Died 18 November 1941 Aged 28 

 
 

 
 
 
Colin Douglas Loughlin was born in 1913 in Liverpool, to parents Edward Alexander Loughlin and 

Isabella Jones.   Edward was a seafaring man and served in the Merchant Navy for many years out of 

Liverpool for both Booth Line and Blue Funnel.  He was also deployed on the convoys during WW1 

and for his service he was awarded the Mercantile Marine Medal and the British War Medal.  Edward 

and Isabella married in 1906 at St Cyprian’s in Edge Hill, while residing in 10 Houlton Street, 

Kensington (now modern housing).  By the time of the birth of their first child, Edward Cash Loughlin 

on 9 January 1908, they were living nearby in 27 Botanic Place. 

 

 
 
In 1929 Edward Alexander Loughlin took over the tenancy. Born in Liverpool, Edward was a 

seafaring man spending many years in the merchant navy working for Booth Line and Blue Funnel. 

Coming ashore he had taken on the tenancy of the Fleece Hotel in Wrexham with his wife Isabella, 

before moving to Farndon, with their sons Edward, Leslie and David. Their sons had been well 

educated, having attended Merchant Taylor's school in Crosby, followed by Grove Grammar School 

on their move to Wrexham.  

(Right) Edward Alexander Loughlin pictured in the rear of the Greyhound in front of the barn c.1931  

His time in the village was short as he passed away in 1934, but made quite an impression on his time 

at the Greyhound, becoming committed to Farndon life and its people. 

 

Another son, Leslie Alexander, followed on 7 March 1909, and by 1911 they had moved to 33 

Stanford Street, Liverpool, where Joseph Denis Loughlin was born on 29 April 1911. Their fourth son 

Colin Douglas, was born in 1913. 

 

Two of the sons, Edward junior and Leslie, attended Merchant Taylor’s School in Crosby, the 

independent fee-paying boarding school, which was quite unusual considering they were not 

particularly well off (although they could afford a servant in a modest terrace house).  Possibly they 

were helped with assisted places though Edward’s employers.  More likely they had support during 

wartime from the Neptune Lodge of Liverpool Freemasons, where Edward had been a member since 

1906.  
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33 Stanford Street, Liverpool 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

United Grand Lodge of England Freemason Membership Registers, 1751-1921 

Neptune Lodge, Liverpool 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Just one of the many vessels that Edward Loughlin travelled on during his career.  The history of this 

particular vessel in its short life, reflects the dangers faced by crews of the Merchant Navy while 

ensuring the supplies were kept moving during the war.  

 

The RMS Aurania was launched on 16 July 1916 and was immediately fitted out as a troopship. She 

made her maiden voyage from the Tyne to New York on 28 March 1917 and on her return sailed to 

Liverpool. The ship remained on hire to the British Government for the remainder of her career and 



was used exclusively on the North Atlantic, primarily moving troops and supplies. On 3 February 

1918, she left Liverpool and was routed around the coast of Northern Ireland, bound for New York. On 

the following morning, she was some 15 miles north-west of Inishtrahull, off the coast of Donegal, 

when she was hit by a torpedo from German submarine UB-67. Nine crew members were killed in the 

explosion. A trawler took the ship in tow but she became stranded near Tobermory on the Isle of Mull, 

Scotland. Rough seas soon broke Aurania up and she was declared a total loss. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RMS Aurania in her wartime colours 

 

 

By the mid-1920s, there came a career change 

and the family moved to Wrexham, where 

Edward became landlord of The Fleece Vaults 

in 22 Hope Street in the centre of town.  

 

Their sons, meanwhile, completed their 

education at Grove Grammar School on their 

move to Wrexham.  

 

After a short time there, they moved to 

Farndon in 1929 to take on the running of 

The Greyhound. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

The Greyhound, Farndon  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Greyhound c.1920s 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Edward and Isabella Loughlin  

and son July 1932 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Edward Alexander 

Loughlin’s time in the 

village was short as he 

passed away in 1934, 

but made quite an 

impression on his time 

at the Greyhound, 

becoming committed 

to Farndon life and its 

people. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Isabella continued to run the Greyhound with the help of her sons Leslie and Edward jnr before she too 

passed away in 1937.  

 

She and husband Edward were laid to rest in the same plot in 

St Chad's Churchyard.  

 

(right) Isabella Loughlin c.1936 

 

Leslie with his wife Annie continued with the tenancy while 

Edward moved to Wrexham in 1937 to take on the Red Lion 

in Pen-y-Bryn in the centre of town. 

 

When the war commenced, both Leslie and Edward became 

part of the war effort working in the Broughton factory 

constructing Wellington bombers. 
 

After shift, Edward travelled to Liverpool to work as a 

firefighter. After the war he became a driver for Crossville 

Bus Company. He passed away in 1986. 

Their bother Dennis Joseph Loughlin also served with the 

RAFVR – as a navigator on Sunderlands flying out of Wick 

and South Wales.  He survived the war.   



 

Pilot Officer 89092 COLIN DOUGLAS LOUGHLIN 
 

Colin Douglas (known as 'CD') Loughlin had by the early thirties begun a teacher training course in 

Chester College.  As his course progressed, he was placed at the Grosvenor St John's School for Boys 

opposite the Amphitheatre in 1935 and moved into the adjacent Old Bishops’ Palace over-looking the 

Dee (below).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Grosvenor St John's School for Boys 



 

 

1939 Census – showing Colin D. Loughlin on the bottom row living in the Old Palace 

 

In 1939, CD Loughlin began to train as a pilot at Speke Airport, which would operate as RAF Speke 

for the duration of the war.  By now he had signed on with the RAFVR, which had supplied the ever 

reliable de Havilland DH.82A Tiger Moth (Tiger Moth II), the RAF's choice for a military trainer 

plane, to government-sponsored civilian flying clubs, such as Liverpool Aero Club.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

de Havilland DH.82A Tiger Moth (Tiger Moth II) 

Fitted with the Gipsy Major 130 H.P. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Once he had completed his basic training, he was posted to 14 Squadron, Royal Air Force Volunteer 

Reserve, and moved to Ternhill Shropshire, where he received intensive advanced training on multi-

engined aircraft, mainly Avro Ansons. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RAF Ternhill, Shropshire 

 

 

After Ternhill, CD was posted to 17 OTU Upwood, Huntingdon, where he undertook crew training to 

fly Blenheims for No.2 Group.  Once qualified, he was posted to No.2 Group Blenheim Squadron 107 

based at Wattisham in Suffolk.     

 

Meanwhile, when World War II broke out, 14 Squadron, Royal Air Force Volunteer 

Reserve was transferred to Egypt but soon returned to Amman. In May 1940, with 

the likelihood of war between Britain and Italy increasing rapidly, 14 Squadron was 

ordered to move to Port Sudan to reinforce the weak RAF forces in East Africa 

facing Italian forces in Ethiopia and Eritrea. On 10 June 1940, Italy declared war on 
Britain and France, and on the night of 11/12 June, 14 Squadron flew its first 

offensive mission of the Second World War, when nine Wellesleys bombed fuel 

storage tanks and the airfield at Massawa.  

 

The Squadron started to receive twin-engined Bristol Blenheims in September 

1940, flying its first Blenheim mission on 20 September, and flying its final 

Wellesley sortie on 20 November. In March 1941 it carried out bombing raids in 

support of the assault on Keren.  

 

At some stage during this period, Pilot Officer Loughlin had completed his training and was 

despatched to join his squadron in North Africa. He was also posted to Iraq as described below.   



In April 1941, following the liberation of Addis Ababa, the squadron was sent to Egypt for operations 

over the Western Desert. The squadron was deployed in support of Operation Brevity on 15–16 May 

1941, an unsuccessful British offensive, and carried out attacks on German and Italian motor transport, 

with five Blenheims being shot down by Messerschmitt Bf 109 fighters of III Gruppe, Jagdgeschwader 

27, while carrying out strafing attacks along the Tobruk–Capuzzo road on 21 May. The squadron flew 

attacks against Maleme Airfield on 25 and 27 May during the Battle of Crete, and in June, flew in 

support of Operation Battleaxe, another unsuccessful British offensive in the Western Desert. On 7 

July 1941, the squadron withdrew from the Western Desert, being based in Palestine and Iraq until it 

returned to Egypt in November 1941.  

 

 

A formation of five Blenheim Mark IVs (Z5893 'W' nearest) of No. 14 Squadron RAF in flight 

over the Western Desert. A Curtiss Kittyhawk, one of the escorting fighters, can be seen on the 

far right. (Imperial War Museum). 

 

 

On 18 November 1941, No.14 Squadron Blenheim IV Z9543 took off from Landing Ground 75 (see 

map), detailed to attack twelve Axis aircraft on the landing ground at Bir el Baheira No.1 (LG 140).  

 

Crew 

89092 P/O (Pilot) Colin Douglas Loughlin RAFVR 

62033 P/O (Obs.) Eric Douglas Main RAFVR 

81399 P/O (Wireless Op./Air Gnr.) Alexander Franks M.C.I.S., RAFVR 

 

The aircraft failed to return and was posted as missing.  The crew were never seen again. 

 

The No.14 Squadron history, Winged Promises, mentions the following: 

 



Attacks were flown against aircraft at Barce Megrun, and against Bir el Baheira on 

the 18th November 1941, where German aircraft were bogged down on the airfield. 

It was on this raid that Pilot Officer O'Laughlin [sic] and his crew of Pilot Officers 

Main and Franks were lost. Their grave was later found dug by the Germans and 

inscribed on a simple cross 'To three brave airmen'. 

Orange,Vincent et al., Winged Promises: A History of No.14 Squadron, RAF 1915-

1945, pub. Fairford, RAF Benevolent Fund Enterprises (1996), p.159. 

 

 

A letter from the Air Ministry to Pilot Officer Loughlin’s brother Edward Loughlin, dated 23 March 

1942, confirmed that three graves had been found.  However, despite a search following the end of the 

war, to the heartbreak of the crew’s families, their resting place could not be traced and all three men 

were commemorated on the Alamein Memorial.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14 Squadron RAFVR Landing Ground 75 (centre pin), from where Pilot Officer CD Loughlin 

and crew were detailed to attack 12 Axis aircraft on the Bir el Baheira No.1, LG 140 (left pin). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Alamein 

Memorial 

(130 kilometres 
west of 

Alexandria) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Pilot Officer CD Loughlin 

and crew stationed in Egypt 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Farndon War Memorial 
Above left:  the memorial plaque located in the entrance hall in the adjacent Memorial Hall. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

At home, Pilot Officer Colin Douglas Loughlin RAFVR was recorded on the Farndon War 
Memorial in St Chad's Churchyard and on the Remembrance Plaque in the Memorial Hall. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Researched and written 
 
 
 

by 

 
 

Mike Royden 
 
 
 

(With grateful thanks to Pat Brooks (nee Loughlin, daughter of Edward 
Loughlin junior) for copies of family photographs and documents) 
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